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Members of the John Donne Society convened inMay 2000 for a
conference-"Donne Returns to Loseley"-at Loseley Park, Surrey,
the birthplace of Donne's wife Anne More. The concluding event of
the conference was awalking tourofsites atPyrford, where the couple
lived the first years of theirmarriage: from the Norman church of St.

Nicholas, Pyrford, down to the ruins ofNewarkPriory, and then along
theWey Navigation to Pyrford Place, owned in the early seventeenth
century by Anne More's cousin Sir FrancisWolley.

Pyrford is a smallSurrey parish, eastofWoking, and about twenty­
five miles southwest of London. The name Pyrford means "ford
markedby apear tree" evidently at the location of "an ancient passage
over theWey."l It is not clear where this ancient passage was. If the
ford crossed the presentRiverWey, itwas at an unlikely distance from
the church, the early focus of settlement. "Pyrefordbrug" was men­
tioned in the time ofEdward III, and land south of the church is called
"The Prae," evidently a Middle English locution derived through
French from the Latin "pratum"-ameadow-although in Surrey the
word was defined as meaning a plank bridge.' The road south of the
church leading to the neighboring town of Ripley crosses a stream

called the Bourne, one of seven watercourses in this area. The parish
boundary follows the Bourne where it leaves the RiverWey until they
join again about 600 yards downstream after the Bourne's long and
elaborate meander. The Bourne is apparently an early course of the
Wey, shortened either naturally or artificially even before theNaviga­
tion canal of the 1650s improved the natural river for traffic.3 It seems
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likely that the fordwas across theBourne stream below the church and
that a bridge was built at some date.

The earliest reference to Pyrford is in a charterof956 in which the
Saxon King Eadwig granted land, showing that Pyrford had been part
of a royal estate in Godley Hundred, an area for the most part owned
by ChertseyAbbey. In DomesdayBookPyrford was the only place in
GodleyHundred notownedby theAbbey.4 The church at Pyrford had
been a chapelry ofWoking, and it is very likely that Pyrford had been
served by the minster church ofWoking, a royal manor and center of
the early Saxon region of "the people of WOCC."5 Shortly after the
Norman Conquest, Pyrford was granted to Westminster Abbey by
William I. The advowson of Pyrford was given to Newark Priory in
1258; the community atNewark had probably originated in someway
fromthe clergyofthe Saxonminsterchurch.6 WestminsterAbbey held
Pyrford until the Dissolution of the Monasteries. The Westminster
abbots regularly visited theirestates,whichproduced food and rents for
them. Pyrford was assigned to the abbot himself and was a favorite

residence, not far from London.'
Just north of the presentPyrford Place is a double-moated site that

was probably created by the abbots ofWestminster. A local author
notes that they "had a lodging ... at Sythwood in Horsell, fromwhich
their stewards administered the estate." This may well have been so,

but the abbots would have stayed at Pyrford.? Double moats are

unusual, and it maybe significant that the aristocraticmanoratWoking
just upstream also had a doublemoat: the abbots ofWestminsterwere

important men. Pyrford was a convenient distance from London for
abbots to ride within a day. If they missed clerical company, Newark
Priorywas just along the river. It is also possible that the abbots traveled
from Westminster by boat. It may not be coincidental that Byfleet
Manor, Pyrford Place, Ockham Court, Woking Palace, and Sutton

Place, all great houses not far from each other, were all on the river.
There was awharf atWoking in the reign ofHenryVIII, and although
there was a need by mid-seventeenth century to improve the river for
commercial traffic, it is very unlikely that it was not used at all before
this.'?
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Mostmoated siteswerebuilt in the twelfth and thirteenth centuries
and seem to have been mainly for show or status, although in a low­

lying area such as Pyrford Place the moat may have been very useful
for drainage. If that were the reason for the moat, however, one
wonderswhy the housewas notbuilt on higherground near the church.
The abbots were wealthy enough to have built a stone house, though
there is no good building stone nearby. St. Nicholas church is built of
"pudding stone"-apoorquality conglomerate-but nothing is known
about the medieval house on the moated site and the moat is not

mentioned in any literature on Pyrford. We do know that, even if the
moat is post-medieval, there was certainly a large medieval house
somewhere in the vicinity; on 18 October 1363 the Abbot was given
license to celebrate mass in the chapel of the manor ofPyrford. 11

At theDissolutionoftheMonasteries, thecommunity atWestminster

Abbeywas dissolved andPyrfordwas granted toSirAnthony Browne,
who acquired a great deal of land locally. VCH Surrey is slightly
confusing about the ownership ofPyrford in subsequent years, but it
seems that the landwas granted to John and JoyceCarleton in 1548; to
GeorgeRevel in 1561; and toEdwardClinton,Earl ofLincoln, in 1574.
The manor was granted to HenryWeston and then to JohnWolley in
1589, andWolley later held all the land inPyrford. He hadbeen renting
it from the Earl ofLincoln since at least 1576. Knighted in 1592, Sir
JohnWolley died in 1596, leaving the manor to his widow Elizabeth,
whoheld it in dowerduring her lifetime. Shewas living therewhen she
married Lord Keeper Sir Thomas Egerton only a few months before
Donne was appointed to his secretariat. After her death in 1600,
PyrfordPlace passed to her son FrancisWolley. When he died in 1609,
his cousin SirArthurMainwaring inherited it, but sold it in 1628 to Sir
RobertParkhurst, aGuildfordmanwhomade hismoney in London. It
remainedwith four generations ofParkhursts, all namedRobert, until
the fourthone sold it toDenzilOnslow in 1677. His great-nephew Lord
Onslow inheritedPyrford Place and it remained in his family for over
200 years.

12

An original moated house would have been old-fashioned by the
sixteenth century, however splendid itwas in theMiddleAges, and the
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abbots' house may have been too old or otherwise unsuitable for new
owners. The later sixteenth century was a great time forbuilding new
houses. Camden, firstwriting in 1586, mentioned "Piriford, where in
our remembranceEdwardEarleofLincoln, LordClinton andAdmirall
ofEngland built him an house." 13 John Aubrey, writing in 1673, says
that it "was anciently the Seatof the Earls ofLincoln; but theHouse (as
now)wasbuilt, for themostPart,bySirJohnWolley .... Here is aWalk

ofElms and Birches a quarterof aMile long, which leads to the noble
Gate-House, onwhich is I.W. [JohnWolley]." 14 From these references
it appears thattheEarlofLincolnbuiltanew housebutthatJohnWolley
added to it. According to John Evelyn, "the house is timber, but
commodious, with one ample dining-room, the hall adorned with

paintings of fowl and huntings, &c ...."15 The house must therefore
have been timber-framed but spacious enough for late seventeenth­

century tastes, suggesting that it was quite large by sixteenth-century
standards. The timber framework could have been filledwith wattle­

and-daub,but it ismore likely to havebeenbrick in ahouse ofthis status.
Nearby Sutton Place had been built entirely ofbrick in the 1520s but
does not seem to have been copied locally in the sixteenth century.
LoseleyHouse,builtnearGuildford in the 1560s, wasofstone from the
convenient ruins of Waverley Abbey and Guildford Friary, though
bricks were also used."

These references to the house atPyrford are somewhatconflicting.
Camdenwas contemporarywith the events hementions, but he sounds
slightly vague. And although Evelyn was writing about a hundred

years later he sounds as ifhe had first-hand knowledge of the house. It
is possible that the Earl of Lincoln lived in the abbots' house and that
Wolley built a new house; but the Earl is unlikely to have wanted a

medieval house. In any case,weknow nearly nothing about the abbots'
house. Possibly itwas rebuilt in the laterMiddleAges andwas suitable
for adaptation by an Earl. The new house was presumably on a new

site inasmuch as the namePyrfordPlace has become attached to a series
of houses situated south of the moat. A booklet by a local writer says,
"PyrfordPlace asbuiltby theEarlofLincolnwas in the formofa square
with an inner courtyard reached by a gateway. Most of that house was
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pulled down in 1740 but the front side largely remained in the house,
recently demolished, in which the hall was formed from the old

gateway-a stone plaquewith the initials JW over the front door came
from the courtyard." 17

An early seventeenth-century map ofPyrford is in the Cambridge
University Library (see details of this map in Figures 1 and 2).18 This

map was purchased in 1980 from a dealer who had no information
aboutwhen orwhy itwas drawn. CambridgeUniversity paleographers
have dated the map ca. 1630-40,19 although Surrey History Centre
archivists have dated it ca. 1620 becauseHoe Bridge Place, built after
the sale ofWoking Palace in 1620, does not appear on the map. The
map was certainly drawn before the Navigation canal was made in
1651-53. Its date must remain uncertain because several features
known to have existed, such as the road fromPyrford to nearbyRipley,
are not shown. Without knowing for whom the map was made, it is
difficult to assess its information. Itcenters onPyrfordbut includes land
inWisley, suggesting it could have been made for a landowner with
interests in both places. From 1594 Sir John Wolley held not only
PyrfordPlacebutalso themanorofWisley.20 Possible occasions for the

drawing of the mapwould include 1609, when SirArthurMainwaring
inherited from his cousin FrancisWolley; or 1628, when Sir Robert
Parkhurst purchased Pyrford Place." Either of these men as new

ownersmay have required amap oftheir possessions. Themap seems
to be too late for Sir John Wolley, who died in 1596, or his son Sir

Francis, who died in 1609. In any case, estate maps were still a fairly
new idea, and served not only as a clearpictureofan estate (as opposed
to awritten survey) but also demonstrated the landowner's power and
status.

The Cambridge map shows two buildings at Pyrford Place, each
with two gables and a central doorway, butwe cannot assume these are
accurate drawings. One likely interpretationof the drawings is that the
upperbuilding is the gatehouse and the lower is themain housewith its
garden. Walton's Life ofDonne suggests that Anne More Donne's
cousin FrancisWolley gave the newly wed Donnes a separate house
fromhis own, although this seems uncertain. Amedieval housemight
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consist of several buildings, but a late sixteenth-century one probably
would not. Most likely the medieval house would have been pulled
down when the sixteenth-century house was built (although SirWill­
iamMore at Loseley apparently left an older house standing for some
time behindhis new construction ofLoseley Park in the 1560s). On the
north side of the house on the Cambridge map is a rectangular area
divided into four plots-a typical garden arrangement for the period.
The space above (to thewest) is labelled "Cort," and there is aboundary
around the whole area, probably a wall. On the north is an offset that

might have been the gateway marked "I. W.," mentioned by Aubrey,
with an outer court beyond it. The avenue of trees is marked, leading
to a lane south of what is now Lock Lane.

The Cambridge map is accurately drawn-bends in roads and
rivers can still be recognized, although buildings may not be drawn so

faithfully, perhaps because for the purpose of the map they did not

matter. The precise outlines of fields seem to havematteredmost, and
their areas are noted; but buildings seem to be indicated generally, not
in accurate pictures. There are three buildings on themap that survive
today, and none ofthese is accurately drawn: Newark Priory, Pyrford
Church, andWisley Church. The garden wall, or at least a boundary,
is clearlymarked on theCambridgemap,with "LockeMede"between
it and the river. The garden is shown as two quadrangular areas that
survive today as fields, now partly built on. On the map both have a

regular arrangementof trees and one ismarked "orchard." Thiswould
be typical of the period, when gardens combined fruit trees with all

types of flowers and other plants. What the map does not appear to
show is a brick summerhouse that is the oldest surviving building at

Pyrford Place.
This building is known as "Queen Elizabeth's summerhouse"

(Figure #3). There is no documentary evidence connecting the Queen
to the summerhouse, but she is known to have visited Pyrford Place
when John Wolley lived there. A local author says that the present
summerhouse is a replacement for an Elizabethan one, but gives no

evidence." Until recently there was old paneling on the upstairs walls,
and there are a few remains ofapainting on the ceiling (Figures #4 and
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#5); so little survives, however, that it is difficult to date these. The
summerhouse is a building of two floors, about eighteen feet square,
with a tiled ogee roof. Nineteenth-century photographs show a vase­

shaped finial at the apexof the roof (Figure#6). Adoor in the northwall

gives access to theupper floor from a raised terrace inside abrickgarden
wall that runs along the edgeoftheNavigation; anotherdoor in thewest
wall gives access from the lower, garden level. This is presumably the
original arrangement, but there has been some alteration to it over the
years,mostly in the twentiethcentury." The timbers of the roofproject
beyond the walls, giving the roof a heavy overhang. The woodwork
of the eaves is decorated with carved squares and rectangles (Figure
#7). The way the bricks are cut around the projecting beams might
suggest that the roof is an addition, but it could be more evidence of

hasty or unskilled brick laying.
TheWeyNavigation runs just outside the gardenwall (Figure #8).

This canal is very close to the old river (shown on the Cambridgemap
beyond "Locke Mede"), but it is higher and branches away a short
distance downstream, beginning its lengthiest canalized stretch. Per­
haps theParkhursts, who ownedPyrfordPlace in the 1650s, refused to
give up any of their garden for the navigation; or perhaps it was not
necessary to dig the canal fartherwest. Inside the brick gardenwall is
the raised terrace of earth, a typical feature of sixteenth- and seven­

teenth-century gardens (Figure#9). Examination ofthewall shows that
an earlier wall has been reinforced on the outside with another wall

(Figure #10), presumably to counteract pressure from the raised walk
which would have been madeworse by the presence of the new canal.
The terrace now ends at the summerhouse and may always have done
so.

lf the Cambridge map shows the garden as it was when the
summerhouse existed, it may well show the terrace. The boundary
encloses a sandy-colored area, possibly a path (Figure 2); it surrounds
the two orchard enclosures and leads to the areaof the house fromboth
sides. Within it is a double line surrounding each orchard, possibly
representing a wall, or a wall and a terrace. In relation to other

recognizable features, the summerhouse (ifitexistedwhen themapwas
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drawn) would have been nearly halfway along the north orchardwall.
On the map it would be extremely small, and its absence does not

necessarilymean that it didnotexist. Aswe have seen, natural features,
roads, and fields are carefully shown by themapmaker; but buildings
apparently are not. This maybebecause the landowner needed to know
what his land looked like, but did not need the precise details of his

buildings. It is unlikely that the summerhouse and the terrace would
have been built so near the water after the Navigation was dug. The
terrace has pushed the wall outwards, and this condition obviously has
been worsened by the canal.

The earliest reference to the summerhouse is on the 1782 Wey
Navigationmap, where itismarked "BanquettHouse," as these garden
buildings were often called. A map of the Navigation made in 1823
does not show the summerhouse; but a tithemap of 1843 does show it,
at the cornerofa fieldmarked "homestead," dividedofffromthe former
orchards." These two orchards, shown on the Cambridge map, may
already have been grubbed up when Lord Onslow pulled down the

sixteenth-century main house after 1776; but the summerhouse prob­
ably remained because it was on the terrace and at the edge of the
property, on a boundary which could not be altered without great
difficulty because of the Navigation.

The general styleof the summerhouse is ofthe period around 1600:
either late sixteenth century or early seventeenth century." Pavilions
with a similar roof were built at Montacute in 1601, and garden
buildings of the same general type were built during much of the
sixteenth century. They were usually called banqueting houses, a
banquet being the final course of ameal, where sweetmeats, fruit, and
nuts were eaten and wine drunk in an informal setting in a separate
building. This could be on the roofof the house, as at LacockAbbey
(ca. 1550), ormore usually in the gardens. Raised areas foroverlooking
gardens, called viewingmounts,werepopular from theMiddleAges to
the eighteenth century.26 Henry VIII had a banqueting house on a

mount at Hampton Court and a larger one at Nonesuch Palace."
Elizabeth I had abanqueting house on a terrace atWindsorCastle in the
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1570s,28 although the Earl ofLeicester is said to have been the first to
construct a terrace for viewing a garden, at Kenilworth in 1575.29

Manyofthebanqueting houses that survive aremore elaborate than
that atPyrford Place, perhaps becausemostof them are ofstone. They
wereoften octagonal, as was the one atWindsor. Thebanqueting house
atMelford Hall, Suffolk, of the mid-sixteenth century, is octagonal; a
pair ofbanqueting houses at HardwickHall are diamond-shaped. Sir
Christopher Hatton had a very elaborate one at Holdenby Hall,
Northamptonshire, with new ideas in planning that support Paula
Henderson's idea that Tudor "garden architecture was innovative and

experimental,"?" perhaps because it was easy to experiment on a small
scale andwith abuildingofsomewhatephemeral purpose, although the
gardenwas a very important partofanElizabethan or Jacobean house.

Surviving banqueting houses with ogee roofs date from the early
seventeenth century, such as one atMontacute, Somerset (1601), and
one at Chelsea, known only from a drawing of 1609, though there is a

mid-sixteenth-century garden buildingwith an ogee roof at Les Baux,
Provence." At Chipping Campden, Gloucestershire, a banqueting
house with ogee roof and a gatehouse survive from the mansion built
in 1613. A sixteenth-century brickbanqueting house survives atHales
Place,Tenterden, Kent,with castellations and otherembellishments in
brick. The house atHales Placewas timber-framed, likePyrfordPlace.
There is abrick summerhouse at Sutton Place, nearGuildford, which
is presumably sixteenth-century; and there was another in Guildford,
very like the Pyrford Place summerhouse. It is known only from a

photograph taken before itwas demolished in 1928, when it stood in a

nursery garden and had been added to. However, when it was built it
was in aprivate pleasure garden, oneofseveral established on landjust
outside the north and south borough boundaries from at least the
sixteenth century, presumably by wealthy townspeople who wanted
extra space. The map ofGuildford of 1739 shows this building in an

area marked "Mr. Martyr's Garden." A sketch of the 1840s shows a

very elaborate fountain here also, but the details are notclearenough to
date it. 32 This building has slightly more elaborate brickwork than the
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Pyrford Place summerhouse. It is also on two floors. A very similar
summerhouse atAbbot 'sHospital inGuildfordhas one flooronly,with
a largeentrance facing the garden, perhapsmore suitable foroldpeople
to sit in on a sunny day than for indulging in eating and drinking, for
which amore substantial building would be needed.

Thus there are no architectural reasons why the summerhouse at

Pyrford Place should not be sixteenth-century. Themouldings on the
woodworkareoflate sixteenth-/early seventeenth-century style." The

brickwork is puzzling because it has no discerniblebond (thepattern in
which short and long sides are laid). This is unusual for apost-medieval
brickbuilding, but not unknown. Perhaps if it had been built in ahurry
for a visit by the Queen there was no time for using a particular bond.
There is a string course around partof the building above the door, and
a plinth near ground level. The summerhouse at Abbot's Hospital in
Guildford also hasmouldings on thewoodworkof the eaves,which are
very similar to the mouldings at Pyrford and to the mouldings on the
main gateofthehospital,whichwasbuiltbetween 1619and 1622. The
mouldings occur on the wood of the gate and on the stonework. The
account book of the Hospital has entries for work on "the new

summerhouse" in 1681-82,which include "5000& Y20fBrick."34 The
fact that the summerhouse was referred to as new could be interpreted
as meaning that there was already an existing summerhouse, which is
the surviving one, and that the summerhouse built in 1681-82 has

disappeared, although this is not entirely convincing. The existing
summerhouse is built against the garden wall on the east side, firmly
dated to 1622by flintsbuilt into it; so it has to be later than thewall. How
late is impossible to say. This means, of course, that the Pyrford
summerhouse could be of the 1620s or later. It is impossible to give a

precise date for its construction; but a consideration of the possible
builders may help.

It is possible that theEarl ofLincoln built the summerhouse, and it
is highly likely that JohnWolley had a garden house of some sort as he
entertainedQueenElizabeth atPyrford several times. In 1576William
More ofLoseley was knighted by the Earl ofLeicester "in the Earl of
Lincoln's garden at Pirford, the Queen being present.'?" Formal
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geometric designs with buildings and a mixture of fruit trees and

flowers, such as are shown on the Cambridge map, were typical of
Elizabethan gardens. Sir Francis Wolley could also have built the

summerhouse, as could his cousin SirArthurMainwaring, who inher­
ited the estate. SirRobert Parkhurst is perhapsmore likely to havebuilt
it than SirArthur, who presumably had an estate ofhis own elsewhere.
Sir Robert, having acquired a country seat, may have wished to

improve it with a summerhouse; and possibly Denzil Onslow felt the
same. He clearly took a pride in his estate, or at least in what it could
produce. When John Evelyn dined with him he was very impressed
that all the meat and fish came from the estate."

John Aubrey mentions a "Lodge" at Pyrford Place from which
Newark Priory could be seen." He might have meant the summer­

house, since the word could be applied to a garden building. In

Aubrey's time, "Lodge"would not havemeant acottage at the entrance
to an estate. There is no indication ofwhereAubrey's "Lodge" was. It
is unlikely that Newark Priory would be visible from any of the

buildings in theparkon theCambridgemap, and clearlyAubreydid not
mean the gatehouse, which he mentions separately. Raised garden
buildings like this were designed for surveying the gardens and the

landscape. This was clearly still important inAubrey's time, since he
mentions views notonly ofNewarkPriorybut also ofClandonHill and
the Guildford road; and he admires the avenue of elms.

It is debatable whether the summerhouse would have been built
after the construction of the Navigation-a commercial waterway.
Although the seventeenth century did not share theVictorian horrorof
visible signs of trade, the Parkhursts or the Onslows may not have
chosen tobuild a summerhouse directly on the new canal. On the other

hand, it may have been admired as a new and impressive feat of

engineering. It was a very early example, and Aubrey was clearly
interested in it. However, it seems more likely that it was there before
theNavigationwasbuilt, because the gardenboundary has notchanged;
and theNavigation seems to have beenbuilt up to thewall. If there had
been no high earth bank and brick wall in the way, perhaps the

Navigation would have been farther to the west. The owners of the
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Navigationwouldprobably have objected to something's beingbuilt so
close to thewater, and the owners ofPyrfordPlace are unlikely to have
wanted to build so close.

Abanqueting housewas not the inconsequential structurewemight
suppose. Gardens and gardenbuildingswereof fargreater importance
to the Elizabethans than to us, despite the huge interest in gardening in
England today. Gardens were apartof the house, and aswe have seen,
the important ceremony of knighting took place in the garden at

Pyrford. Twomore examplesofthe importanceofgardens in social and
intellectual life occur conveniently in relation to John Donne. Ellis

Heywood's IlMoro, a serious work about Sir Thomas More, is in the
form of a dialogue set in a garden, the beauty ofwhich actually starts
the discussion; and JasperHeywood's translationofSeneca's Thyestes
includes a vision of a special feast for English poets in a banqueting
house on Parnassus, prepared by theMuses." It would be pleasant to
think that John Donne may have thought himself somewhere near

Pamassus as he sat in the summerhouse atPyrford. Althoughwe cannot
prove that the building was there when he lived at Pyrford, it is very
likely that it was. Sir John Wolley remains the best candidate for

building the summerhouse, on grounds of style and the fact that he
entertainedQueenElizabeth, aprivilege that caused thebuildingoffar
larger structures than the summerhouse.

GuildfordMuseum
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Above: Figure 1. Detail of an early 17th-century map of Pyrford in Cambridge
University Library. Printed by permission of the Syndics ofCambridge University.

Facing: Figure 2. Zoomed image of Pyrford Place as shown in Figure 1.
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Figure 3. "Queen Elizabeth's summerhouse" (photo by D. Flynn, May
2000).
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Figure 4. Paneling formerly in the summerhouse (photo by D. Flynn, May
1996).

Figure 5. Painted ceiling in the summerhouse (photo by D. Flynn,May 1999).



358 John Donne Journal

Figure 6. "QueenElizabeth's summerhouse" (photo byH. E.Allenby, published
in R. Ashington Bullen, Some Materials towards a History of Wisley and
Pyrford Parishes [Guildford: Frank Lasham, 1906], p. 43).

Figure 7. Eaves of the summerhouse (photo by D. Flynn, May 1998).
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Figure 8. "Queen Elizabeth's summerhouse" (photo by D. Flynn, May 1998).

Figure 9. Terrace inside garden wall (photo by D. Flynn, May 1996).
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Figure 10. Cross section of garden wall (photo by D. Flynn, May 2000).


